From: Planning Consultation SEL
<planningconsultationSEL@forestrycommission.gov.uk>

Sent: 09 September 2025 11:24:37 UTC+01:00

To: "Planning Admin" <planning.admin@gravesham.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: Planning Application Consultation for application 20250802
Attachments: ufm31_Consult_External.pdf

Caution: This email was sent from outside of the organisation. Do not click on links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender.

Dear Gravesham Council,

Thank you for taking the time to consult the Forestry Commission regarding
this application. We are currently receiving a significant number of planning
consultations. We are triaging all requests and may have further comments
as a result; however, this response should be considered to be the Forestry
Commission’s formal response to this consultation unless we provide
subsequent comments.

As a Non-Ministerial Government Department, we do not provide an
opinion supporting or objecting to planning applications. Instead, we
provide advice on the potential impact that proposed developments could
have on trees and woodland using our local knowledge and expertise,
planning policy and legislation that could be relevant and measures that
could help to avoid or limit impacts and result in overall gains wherever
possible.

The planning authority should consider the following policy and guidance as
part of their decision-making process for this application (updated March
2025):

1. Ancient woodlands, ancient trees and veteran trees are
irreplaceable habitats. Paragraph 193(c) of the NPPF sets out that
development resulting in the loss or deterioration of irreplaceable
habitats should be refused unless there are wholly
exceptional reasons and a suitable compensation strategy exists. In
considering the impacts of the development on Ancient Woodland,
Ancient and Veteran trees, the planning authority should
consider direct and indirect impacts resulting from both construction




and operational phases. Impacts can be caused by activities outside of
areas designated as ancient woodland (eg within buffer zones), or
within open areas of ancient woodland, which can result in loss or
deterioration of ancient woodland.

Please refer to Natural England and Forestry Commission

joint Standing Advice for Ancient Woodland and Ancient and Veteran
Trees, updated in January 2022. The Standing Advice can be a
material consideration for planning decisions, and contains advice and
guidance on assessing the effects of development, and how to avoid
and mitigate impacts. It also includes an Assessment Guide which can
help planners assess the impact of the proposed development on
ancient woodland or ancient and veteran trees in line with the NPPF.

The Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction
2024 (published January 2024) requires local planning authorities in
England to consult the Secretary of State before granting planning
permission for certain types of development, including development
that affects ancient woodland: The Town and Country Planning
(Consultation) (England) Direction 2024 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

. Existing trees should be retained wherever possible, and
opportunities should be taken to incorporate trees into
development. Trees and woodlands provide multiple benefits to
society such as storing carbon, regulating temperatures, strengthening
flood resilience and reducing noise and air pollution.!it! Paragraph 136
of the NPPF seeks to ensure new streets are tree lined, that
opportunities should be taken to incorporate trees elsewhere in
developments, and that existing trees are retained wherever possible.
Appropriate measures should be in place to secure the long-term
maintenance of newly planted trees. The Forestry Commission may be
able to give further support in developing appropriate conditions in
relation to woodland creation, management or mitigation.

. Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG): As of the 12th of February 2024,
major development (unless exempt) will have to deliver 10% net gain
in biodiversity. Paragraph 187(d) of the NPPF also sets out

that planning (policies and) decisions should minimise impacts on and
provide net gains for biodiversity. Paragraph 187(d) encourages
development design to integrate opportunities to improve biodiversity,
especially where this can secure net gains for biodiversity. BNG offers
opportunities for protecting (retaining) trees and woodlands, as well as
new planting and enhancement of existing trees and woodlands, and



https://www.gov.uk/guidance/ancient-woodland-ancient-trees-and-veteran-trees-advice-for-making-planning-decisions
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/ancient-woodland-ancient-trees-and-veteran-trees-advice-for-making-planning-decisions
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fgovernment%2Fuploads%2Fsystem%2Fuploads%2Fattachment_data%2Ffile%2F1044856%2FAncient_woodland_assessment_guide.docx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-town-and-country-planning-consultation-england-direction-2024
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-town-and-country-planning-consultation-england-direction-2024
https://forestryengland.sharepoint.com/sites/fs-SouthEastLondonArea/Planning/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2Ffs-SouthEastLondonArea%2FPlanning%2FStandard%20letters%20%26%20responses%2FTriage%20process%2FStandard%20Response%20Template%20v1.1.msg&viewid=c5f4fb98-9a67-41cc-82c4-938cba21c2dc&parent=%2Fsites%2Ffs-SouthEastLondonArea%2FPlanning%2FStandard%20letters%20%26%20responses%2FTriage%20process#_ftn1

the planning authority also should consider the wider range of
benefits trees, hedgerows and woodlands can provide as part of
delivering good practice biodiversity net gain requirements in
addition to contributing to the BNG figure. Ancient woodlands
(including PAWS) and ancient & veteran trees are

already recognised as irreplaceable habitats and as such are exempt
from the net gain requirement.

We would also like to remind applicants that tree felling may require a felling
licence from the Forestry Commission.

For all planning applications, we advise the Council to carefully consider the
previous usage of sites, including historical satellite imagery, to consider if
development is being proposed on recently felled woodland. Please contact
us if you suspect this is the case. If evidence suggests that sites have been
degraded since January 2020, the BNG baseline may need to reflect

this: Biodiversity Net Gain FAQs - Frequently Asked Questions | Local
Government Association

If you have any questions regarding our advice or concerns that are not
covered by the above, please contact us again highlighting any specific
issues for us to consider in more detail.

Yours sincerely,

South East and London Area Team
Forestry Commission

“ Forestry Commission

[1] Recent studies have shown that the economic value of individual trees
outside of our forests and woodlands has been calculated as £3.8

billion Economic value of the UK’s individual trees revealed for first time -
Forest Research.



https://www.gov.uk/guidance/apply-online-for-a-felling-licence
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/apply-online-for-a-felling-licence
https://www.local.gov.uk/pas/events/past-events/biodiversity-net-gain-local-authorities/biodiversity-net-gain-faqs
https://www.local.gov.uk/pas/events/past-events/biodiversity-net-gain-local-authorities/biodiversity-net-gain-faqs
https://www.forestresearch.gov.uk/news/125348-economic-value-of-the-uks-individual-trees-revealed-for-first-time/
https://www.forestresearch.gov.uk/news/125348-economic-value-of-the-uks-individual-trees-revealed-for-first-time/

From: planning.admin@gravesham.gov.uk <planning.admin@gravesham.gov.uk>
Sent: 04 September 2025 12:14

To: Planning Consultation SEL <planningconsultationSEL@forestrycommission.gov.uk>
Subject: Planning Application Consultation for application 20250802

This Message originated outside your organisation.

Please refer to the attached Consultation Document for reference 20250802 at Blackthorn Farm.

Regards,
Planning Team, Gravesham Borough Council.

Disclaimer

The information contained in this communication from the sender is confidential. It is intended solely for use by the
recipient and others authorised to receive it. If you are not the recipient, you are hereby notified that any
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking action in relation of the contents of this information is strictly prohibited
and may be unlawful.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware.




Gravesham 4@

Borough Council

Planning Services

Case Officer: Ms Amanda Cue
Direct Line: 01474 337422
E-mail: planning.reps@gravesham.gov.uk

Forestry Commission Reference: 20250802
South East & London Area Date: 4 September 2025

Bucks Horn Oak
FARNHAM
Surrey

GU10 4LS

Dear Sir/Madam,

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE)
(ENGLAND) ORDER 2010

REFERENCE NO. 20250802
UPRN 200001488950

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT  Outline planning application for up to 100No. residential
dwellings (including affordable housing), with all matter
reserved except for access and creation of a new access
from A227/South Street.

LOCATION Blackthorn Farm, Wrotham Road, Meopham, Gravesend
Kent

| have received the above application. The plans and documents comprising the application are
available for inspection on Public Access on the Council’s website. Log on to
http://plan.gravesham.gov.uk/online-applications and enter 20250802. Or click on the following link
to be taken directly to the application.

https://plan.gravesham.gov.uk/online-
applications/applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=TOMVJ5HPGCI00

Should you wish to make any observations regarding this proposal, your comments should be
emailed to us at: planning.reps@gravesham.gov.uk and MUST be as a PDF document or Word
format attachment (i.e. .doc and not an .msg). Please note your formal comments should not be
sent directly to the case officer by e-mail.

If you are minded to suggest planning conditions, please be aware that under The Town and
Country Planning (Pre Commencement Conditions) Regulations 2018 the Local Planning Authority
will have to seek the applicant’s written agreement to any pre-commencement condition(s) it
intends to impose if granting planning permission. You are therefore requested to provide
appropriate justification for any condition(s) you consider must be pre-commencement of
development on site.

| shall be pleased to receive any observations that you wish to make by 25 September 2025.

INVESTORS™
Phone 01474 3370 00 IN PE: :PLE
Website www.gravesham.gov.uk

Gravesham Borough Council, Civic Centre, Windmill Street, Gravesend, Kent DA12 1AU
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Yours faithfully,

Shazad Glhani

MPhil, MA, BA (Hons)
Head of Planning
Planning Service





